

ARTICLE I – GENERAL PURPOSE

SECTION 6: DEFINITIONS

Alternative Review Procedure means the procedures set forth in Section 20B that modify the plan or plat application review process as described in Section 20B of the Subdivision Ordinance.

Buffer Zone means a vegetated area adjacent to a creek, river, or natural drainage way that is required to be free of impervious cover and in which Development is restricted as provided in Section 49 of the Subdivision Ordinance.

City Staff means the officers, departments, employees, and agents of the City assigned and designated from time to time by the City Manager and/or Council, including but not limited to the Director of Planning, to review, comment and/or report on zoning applications.

Dry Utility means improvements placed or installed for the purpose of producing, generating, transmitting, selling or furnishing electric, telecommunications, natural gas, or propane service from a utility provider. This definition does not include improvements installed for the purpose of distributing potable or non-potable water, collecting and treating wastewater/sewage, or conveying rainfall runoff.

Filing Date means, with respect to plans governed by this Ordinance, the date that plans are determined to be complete and are accepted for review by the City.

Submittal Schedule means a schedule prepared by the Director of Planning and adopted by the Planning & Zoning Commission. This schedule shall include filing dates and action dates associated with the site development permit applications.

ARTICLE III – USE COMPONENTS

SECTION 19: PUD - PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT

(a) Purpose and Objectives

The purpose and intent of the Planned Unit Development (PUD) district is to create unified standards for development in order to provide flexible, customized zoning and, where requested by the applicant, subdivision standards to encourage imaginative and innovative designs for the development of property in the City consistent with this ordinance and accepted urban planning principles in accordance with the City of Leander Comprehensive Plan. The PUD rules are designed:

- (1) To allow development which is harmonious with nearby areas;
- (2) To enhance and preserve areas which are unique or have outstanding scenic, environmental, cultural or historic significance;
- (3) To provide an alternative for more efficient use of land, resulting in smaller utility networks, safer streets, more open space and lower construction and maintenance costs;
- (4) To encourage harmonious and coordinated development by developing plans that better address natural features, community facilities, circulation patterns and surrounding properties and neighborhoods;
- (5) To enable productive development of land with unusual physical or location

- characteristics that may not be feasible under standard zoning district regulations;
- (6) To facilitate the development of the tax base, the local economy, population and public facilities and provide additional protections to the environment;
- (7) To provide and result in an enhanced residential and/or work environment for those persons living and/or working within the district; and
- (8) To require the application of professional planning and design techniques to achieve overall coordinated mixed-use developments and avoid the negative effects of piecemeal, segregated, or unplanned development.

Toward these ends, rezoning of land and development under this district will be permitted only in accordance with the intent and purpose of the City's Comprehensive Plan and this ordinance, and to that end the PUD plan shall be prepared and approved in accordance with the provisions of this ordinance.

(e) Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan

A Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan of the entire property within the PUD will be considered by the Commission prior to any recommendation to, or consideration by, the City Council of the PUD district ordinance. A Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan may also be considered as a Concept Plan and Preliminary Plat for subdivision purposes if the applicant elects to seek approval of the Concept Plan and Preliminary Plat under the Alternative Review Procedure set forth in Section 20B of the Subdivision Ordinance at the time the PUD application is submitted and if it meets the standards of a Concept Plan and Preliminary Plat as contained in the Subdivision Ordinance or as modified and approved in the Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan.

ARTICLE VI – SITE STANDARD

SECTION 1 LANDSCAPING, TREE PRESERVATION & PROTECTION, AND SCREENING REQUIREMENTS

(d) Screening Requirements.

- (1) In addition to the landscaping requirements of this section, all development ~~other than single-family or two-family~~ shall comply with the following screening requirements:
 - (i) The following shall be screened from the view of at least sixty percent (60%) of adjacent single-family or two-family residences and any street or public right-of-way: off-street parking areas, loading spaces and docks, trash and storage containers, outside storage areas, satellite dishes larger than eighteen (18) inches in diameter, antennas, mechanical equipment, and metal siding.
 - (ii) Above ground utility facilities up to six (6) feet above grade for multi-family and non-residential development are required to be screened from view except for poles, fire hydrants and existing lines.
 - (iii) Detention Facilities including detention ponds and/or water quality ponds shall be screened from view.
 - (iv) Screening by vegetation that could be removed from adjacent undeveloped or partially developed properties when such property is developed is not considered as screening from view.

- (v) Outside storage areas shall be screened by the use of a privacy fence or wall at least the height of the items to be screened and in conformance with the requirements of this ordinance.
- (vi) Outside storage areas shall be screened by the use of a privacy fence or wall at least the height of the items to be screened and in conformance with the requirements of this ordinance. If the outdoor storage area is adjacent to an arterial or collector roadway, then the wall is required to be constructed of one or more of the following materials: brick, stone, cast stone, stucco (limited to thirty-five (35%) of the exterior surface area of walls), factory tinted (not painted) split face concrete masonry unit, or other similar material approved by the Director of Planning. In addition to the materials listed above, textured pre-cast concrete (e.g. Woodcrete) is also permitted when the wall is adjacent to collectors.
- (vii) A minimum five-foot (5') landscaped area located on the exterior of the fence shall be provided and landscaped in accordance with paragraph (2) (i) above unless the fence is on a rear boundary line or adjoining a permanent structure on the site.
- (viii) Fuel pumps are required to be screened from view of any street or public right-of-way to at least the height of the fuel pump.
- (ix) Lift stations are required to be screened from view of adjacent single-family or two-family residences, or any street or public right-of-way by the use of a wall. The wall is required to be constructed of one or more of the following materials: brick, stone, cast stone, stucco (limited to thirty-five (35%) of the exterior surface area of walls), factory tinted (not painted) split face concrete masonry unit, textured pre-cast concrete (e.g. Woodcrete) or other similar material approved by the Director of Planning.

(2) Public School Districts shall not be required to screen bus storage facilities with solid walls. These facilities may be secured with black or green vinyl coated fencing.

~~(2)(3)~~ Approved screening techniques include privacy fences, evergreen vegetative screens, landscape berms, existing vegetation or any combination thereof unless otherwise noted in this section.

~~(3)(4)~~ Privacy Fences (See section 14 and 16 of this Article)

~~(4)(5)~~ Evergreen Vegetative Screens. Evergreen plant materials shall be shrubs, at least thirty (30) inches in height and at a minimum spacing of 48 inches at the time of installation, in combination with shade trees not more than fifty feet apart.

~~(5)(6)~~ Landscape Berms, in combination with trees, shall fulfill the screening requirements of this section if the berms are at least three (3) feet in height and have maximum side slopes of four (4) feet of horizontal run for every one (1) foot in vertical rise.

~~(6)(7)~~ Existing on-site vegetation, demonstrating significant visual screening capabilities and as approved by the Director of Planning, shall fulfill the requirements of this section.

SECTION 16: FENCES

- (a) Except in an SFR district and for agricultural uses in any district and to repair existing barbed wire fencing, barbed wire fencing is prohibited for residential districts.
- (b) Any fencing installed adjacent to a public ROW shall be installed with the finished (smooth) side facing the ROW.
- (c) All fences along a common property boundary shall be less than or equal to ~~six-eight (68)~~ feet in height except as provided below.
- (d) Fences ~~less than or equal to~~ greater than eight (8) feet in height shall be allowed for impeding access to hazardous or secured facilities including, but not limited to, electrical substations and chemical or equipment storage yards; ~~or where, the fence forms a perimeter around a subdivision.~~ For high security applications, barbed wire or razor wire (or equivalent) may be

- installed above the eight (8) foot height limit but not to exceed a total of ten (10) feet in height.
- (e) Fences less than or equal to three (3) feet in height shall be allowed in front yards of single-family and two-family districts. No fencing is permitted in the front or side street setback of all other districts.
 - (f) No fence or other structure more than twenty percent (20%) solid or more than three (3) feet high shall be located within twenty-five (25) feet of the intersection of any rights-of-way.
 - (g) All fences shall be constructed to maintain structural integrity against natural forces such as wind, rain and temperature variations.
 - (h) The finished side of all fences built to comply with screening regulations shall face away from the screened object.
 - (i) All fencing shall be maintained in an attractive state and shall not be allowed to lean, sag, warp or otherwise fall into disrepair. Any missing, rotted, loose or broken pieces shall be replaced.
 - (j) All posts shall have concrete footings.
 - (k) There is no height limit to fences for exotic hoof stock.
 - (l) Any chain link fencing (including posts) utilized for uses other than single family or duplex uses shall be black or green vinyl coated.
 - (m) Fences associated with single-family homes are encouraged to provide a masonry column separating the wooden fence from the home as a means to disconnect the structure from a potential flammable material.
-

ARTICLE IX - SITE DEVELOPMENT

SECTION 1: GENERAL PROVISIONS

(b) Applicability; Site Development Permit Required

Any person who develops, or causes to be developed, property located within the corporate limits of the City shall comply with this Chapter and shall obtain a site development permit, dry utility permit, or minor site development permit, as applicable prior to commencing development. Reference to site development permits in this Article shall include dry utility permits and minor site development permits. Within the city corporate limits the use of property shall not be changed, no development shall take place and no building permit shall be issued until a site development permit has been issued in accordance with the code of ordinances of the City. A property must either be final platted or exempt from platting before a site development permit may be issued. Property for which a site development permit has been issued shall be developed in compliance with the approved site plan. The following are exceptions to the applicability of this Chapter:

SECTION 2 SITE PLAN PROCESSING; EXPIRATION

(a) Site Plan Processing

(1) Site plan submission:

- a. The applicant is encouraged-required to attend-request a pre-development meeting with city staff to help familiarize the applicant with applicable codes and regulations and to expedite the site development permit approval process.

The Planning Director may waive this requirement if they deem that the meeting is not necessary.

- b. The Planning Director shall prepare an application Submittal Schedule. The Submittal Schedule shall be reviewed and approved by the Commission annually. The Planning Director is authorized to adjust an approved schedule to accommodate holidays, City Hall closures, and cancelled or special called meetings. the
- c. The Planning Director shall prepare site development application forms which shall include a checklist of the required information and documents that are required to be submitted by applicants in order for an application to be accepted as complete for review and processing under this Chapter. The Commission shall review and approve the application forms and amendments prepared by the Planning Director from time to time. The submittal shall also include a list of any requested variances from the ordinances. The Planning Director shall update the application from time to time as required due to amendments to this Ordinance, state law, or applicable technical codes and manuals.
- d. Site plans shall be submitted by appointment and will only be accepted for submittal with the Planning Department on the days authorized by ~~on a date consistent with the adopted Submittal Schedule with the Planning Department~~ in conformance with all information and materials required by the most recent site development permit application/checklist and this Chapter. City staff shall review the application for completeness and either accept the application as complete or reject the application and provide the applicant with written notice of rejection that specifies the reasons for rejection within ten business days of the date the application is submitted. An application will be considered complete if it is submitted in the required form, includes all information and documents required in the application, and is accompanied by the applicable fees. An application that is not complete, does not include the information or documents required in the application, or is not accompanied by the applicable fees shall not be accepted by the City for review and processing. If the application is determined to be incomplete, the Planning Director shall provide written notice of the rejection of the application that includes a description of the application's deficiencies. No further processing of the application will occur until the deficiencies are corrected.
- ~~— An incomplete site development permit application shall not be accepted for review and processing. City staff shall review the submittal for completeness within ten (10) business days of the date of the application submittal.~~
- e. In addition to the items required on the Site Development Permit application and checklist, the following must be reviewed and approved prior to the submittal of the Site Development Permit application in order for the Site Development Permit application to be accepted as complete, unless the City Engineer, Director of Planning, or Director of Parks and Recreation determines that one of the items is either not needed or may be reviewed concurrently to process the Site Development Permit application:
 - a. Lift station report
 - b. Water and wastewater capacity analysis
 - c. Drainage study
 - d. Flood plain permit/CLOMR
 - a-e. Traffic impact analysis
 - f. Preliminary Park Plan

f. As coordinator of the site development permit process, the Planning Department shall distribute copies of ~~the a~~ site plan accepted for review and processing to all reviewing departments. Within 45 calendar days of the ~~application-filing~~ date, the site development permit shall be disapproved, with reasons provided for such disapproval, or approved. Issuance of comments by city staff identifying items to be addressed by the applicant shall constitute disapproval of such application until the applicant addresses such comments. Failure to disapprove or approve the site development application within 45 days shall constitute approval of the application.

(2) Expiration of application:

a. Prior to an application being accepted for review and processing, an application shall expire on the 45th day after the date the application is submitted to the City if:

(i) the applicant fails to provide documents or other information necessary to comply with requirements relating to the form and content of the application set forth in this Ordinance;

(ii) within ten (10) business days of the date the application is submitted to the City, the City provides the applicant written notice of the failure that specifies the necessary documents or other information that are missing from the application and the date the application will expire if the documents or other information is not provided; and

(iii) the applicant fails to provide the specified documents or other information within the time provided in the notice.

b. After a site development permit is accepted for review and processing, the site development permit application shall expire within nine (9) months of the date that all initial staff review comments from all reviewing departments have been issued on the application if a site development permit has not been issued due to the applicant's failure to cause the proposed site development application to comply with applicable city regulations. The Planning Department may grant one six (6) month extension if the applicant can show substantial progress in obtaining a site development permit. Substantial progress shall consist of, at a minimum, a resubmission of the site development plans and all relevant materials by the applicant that address all initial staff review comments from all reviewing departments.

~~(2)(3)~~ Construction not to begin prior to permit issuance: ~~Except for development permitted by an approved rough grading permit, s~~Site construction shall not begin until all necessary permits have been obtained, all fees paid, approval has been granted by all reviewing departments and a site development permit is issued by the Planning Department. A stop work order may be issued and an applicant shall be required to pay two (2) times the normal permit fee for any property upon which construction has begun prior to the issuance of a site development permit, unless prior written approval is obtained from the Planning Department. If a stop work order is issued as a result of construction beginning prior to issuance of a site development permit, construction activities shall cease until the required approval is obtained.

(f) Dry Utility Permit

Projects that consist solely of the installation of utilities and associated facilities are eligible for review and processing as dry utility permit. A dry utility permit application shall be submitted for review in conformance with all information and materials required by the most recent dry utility permit application/checklist.